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Public Accountants & Consultants

B (105) — Avenue (2) — Smart Village Telephone : (202) 35 37 5000 — 35 37 5005
Km 28 Cairo — Alex Desert Road E-mail : Egypt@kpmg.com.eg
Giza — Cairo — Egypt Fax : (202) 35 37 3537
Postal Code : 12577 P.O.Box :(5) Smart Village
Review Report

To the Board of Directors of CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments

Introduction

We have performed a limited review for the accompanying Consolidated statement of
financial position of CI Capital Holding Company for Financial Investments
(Egyptian Joint Stock Company) as at 30 June 2021 and the related Consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the six months then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes. The company’s management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these interim financial statements in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these
Consolidated interim financial statements based on our limited review.

Scope of Limited Review

We conducted our limited review in accordance with Egyptian Standard on Review
Engagements 2410, "Limited Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by
the Independent Auditor of the Entity." A limited review of interim financial
statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters in the Company, and applying analytical and other limited
review procedures. A limited review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion on these Consolidated interim financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on our limited review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying Consolidated interim financial statements do not
present fairly, in all material respects, the Consolidated financial position of the
Company as at 30 June 2021 and of its Consolidated financial performance and its
Consolidated cash flows for the six months then ended in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards.
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Emphasis of Matter:

Without qualifying our opinion, and as detailed in note No. (33) of the financial statements
notes, most of the world countries, including Egypt, were exposed during the first quarter of
2020 to the new Covid-19 pandemic and its impact has been extended until now, As indicated in
the above-mentioned clarification, the company's management is currently taking several
procedures to counter this risk and reduce its impact on its financial position and also assures
that the value of assets and liabilities in the financial statements have been identified upon the
best estimate from the latest data available for it.

KPMG Hazem Hassan

kPG Hezem Hessaan
Cairo, August 8, 2021

KPMG BHazem Hassan
Public Accountants and Consultants
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CI Capital Holding For 1

"Egyptian Joiut Stock Company"”

T of fi Issued in Arabic

C id of @i position as at June 30, 2021

(in EGP) N:te 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

no.

Non-current assets

Investements at fair value through other comprehensive income ) 18 80t 361 15 801 361
)i n settl fund [O)] 7163 666 6983 563
Debit Clients-Net 12) 7268273202 6544 356 355
Joint control investment 13) 951 902 802 1277912571
Property, plant and equipment (Net) ] 211316918 212834 814
Investments Property ®) 45681 418 46 158 212
Goodwill (5) 348 804 544 148 804 544
Seauitization transactions debtors (23) 148 562 255 124 543 237
Right to use asset 8- 119318977 -
Defared tax assets 25-1) sNns1io 5973 559
Total non-current assets 9125 543 253 8583 368 216
Current assets

Cash at banks (9.20) 921 800368 850 356 226
Assets held for sale (26) 2288 796 8747981
Treasury bills {10) 369048 215 487077 865
Financial investments at fair value thiough profit or loss ) 195038 044 150549 878
Clearance accounts 241417 682 937
Debit Clients - (Net) 12) 3843 427 500 3 548 602 025
Notes Receivables - 4630222
Other assets (14) 102 237 819 156 354 070
Total current assets 5434082 159 $207 001 204
Total assets 14 559 625 412 13 790 369 420
Equity

Issued and paid in capital (15) 1 000 000 000 1000 000 000
Legal reserve 34739 555 26282970
Cumulative foreign subsidaries translation differences 64916 944 41150330
Retained eamings 1224 863 812 1558 354 657
Reserve for financial instrument application risk 76 852 590 95391177
Issuance premium resarve (15) 402 732129 402 732 129
R for empl stock hip plan (ESOP) @n - 15710673
Total shareholders' equity-Holding company 2804 105 030 3139618936
Non-controlling interest 1012228 764 1204 232 551
Total shareholders' equity and non controlling interest 38161333 794 4343 851 487
Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans (17.20) 6 768 290 705 5708424 728
Prepaid lease rents 139 961 051 114 523 220
End of service employees benefit 19) 26 887 154 23 960 854
Lease Liabilities - Long term 8-2) 106 852 310 -
Defared tax liabilities 25-1 15 266 147 32215044
Total non-curreat liabilities 7057257 967 5879123 846
Curreat labilities

Short-term loans (17,20) 1548 710867 1835 422 668
Short-tam credit facilities 1098 705 202 855801 078
Clients -Credit balances 409 977 240 366 999 083
Leased assets Payables to suppliers 24 928 102 51300847
Current income tax liability 55 403 967 166 896 607
Lease Liabilities - short term @8-2) 16 930 637 -
Other lisbilities (16) 506 668 037 243982 206
Provisions (18) 23 927 664 24879974
Clearance - crodit balances 781 935 18 088 831
Duc to related partics 0 - 40227193
Total current liabilities 3686 033 651 3567394087
Total liabilities 10743 291 618 9446517933
Total shareholders' equity and Liabilities 14 559 625 412 13 790 369 420

The accompanying notes from pages (6) to (74) an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read therewith.

(Review report attached)

Mahmoud Attalla
Chairman & Managing Director
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CI Capital Holding For Financial Investments
""Egyptian Joint Stock Company"
Trauslation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Consolidated i t for the six months ended on June 30, 2021
Note For the six months ended For the three months ended
(in EGP) i,
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Operating revenues (24) 991 839 372 955349012 483 695 456 460 837 935
(Losses) Gain on sale of assets held for sale (197 387) 519183 (353177 214999
Interest income on treasury bills 17345953 9172233 5874 485 3725471
Profit from selling financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 290 848 19939 290 848 9448
Profit from revaluation financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 40 589 472 745 700 17 742 306 745 700
The company’s profit share in joint control investment 13 891 439 909 17743 485 881 831427 8412621
Cost of selling consumer durable goods (4616 802) (15 967 646) - (7 515 590)
Foreign y exchange diffe; (2 959 769) 4078 647 (566 455) 9613 815
Interest income 23182072 28123338 11 009 667 10310683
Dividends income 10251170 26 039 029 10251170 26 038 641
Gains from selling property, plant & equipment 1077815 293 876 1077815 -
Other income 15 896 962 5699 800 13 669 559 1810092
Total revenues 1984 139 615 1031816 596 1424 523 101 514203 815
Direct financing and banking expenses (395 593 629) (418 425 309) (202 330 839) (206 811 481)
General and administrative expenses (22) (507 680 041) (300 286 134) (187 524 350) (151835014)
Investments property depreciation 6) (476 794) (476 794) (238397) (238397)
Right to use asset amortization (8-1) (13 189 228) - (6 577 196) -
Lease liability interest (8-2) (6020177) - (2 955 346) -
Expected credit loss (20 184 183) (38 577 562) (20532 777) (19 603 913)
Provisions charged (no longer required) (18) 32686 (2987 738) 32686 (2 258 693)
Total expenses (943 111 366) (760 753 537) (420126 219) (380 747 493)
1 Net profit before tax 1041 028 249 271 063 059 1 004 396 882 133 456 317
Income Tax 25) (63 189 465) (65 680 258) (29 845 138) (29 932 801)
Net profit after Tax for the period 977 838 784 205 382 801 974 551 744 103 523 516
Distributed on:
Holding company - Equity holders 171 745 083 178 825 089 188 408 751 90426 213
Non-controlling interest 806 093 701 26 557712 786 142993 13097 303
977 838 784 205 382 801 974 551 744 103 523 516

Il B Hu

o

The accompanying notes from pages (6) to (74) an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read therewith.
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CI Capital Holding For Financial Investments
"Egyptian Joint Stock Company"
Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(in EGP) For the six months ended For the three months ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Net profit for the period 977 838 784 205 382 801 974 551 744 103 523 516
Cumulative foreign subsidaries translation differences 56 642916 397815 56 870 933 1704 357
Total comprehensive income for the period 1034 481 700 205 780 616 1031 422 677 105 227 873
Attributable to:
Holding company - Equity holders 195511 697 179 222 904 212234713 92 130 570
Non-controlling interest 838 970 003 26 557 712 819 187 964 13 097 303

1 034 481 700 205 780 616 1031 422 677 105227873

The accompanying notes from pages (6) to (74) an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read therewith.
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CI Capital Holdlog For Finsncisl Investments
“Egyptisa Jeint Stock Company”
of fasncial

ginsily fssued in Arabic
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the six mouths ended on June 30, 2021

(s EGP)

Cash flows from operating setivities

Net profit before tax

Adjustmeats as foliow:

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment
Depreciation of investments property
(losses) Gain from selting beld for sale assets

Profit from selling Bnancial investmeats at fair value through profit or loss
Revaluation differences in financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Gains from selling property, plant & equipment

Provisions charged (no longer required)

Provisicns used

Imairment reverse Expected credit loss

Lease interest

Amortizatioa right to use asset

Interest income:

Divideads income

Financing expenses

Interest income on treasury bills

Interest on selling consumer dusable goods

End of service employees benefit-charged
Employee Stock ownership plan (ESOP) - charged

Clients Impairment

Changesin:

Other assets

Debit customers

Credit customers

Clearance accounts

Other Liabilities

payments for purchasc PPE

End of service employees benefit-used

Paid Lease Liability

Change in paid lease liability reserve

Inventory

Leased assets payable to suppliers

Securitizations transactions

Restricted cash at banks

Customer loans

Clients (Finance lease)

Employee Stock ownership plan (ESOP)-paid

Prepaid rents proceeds

Notes Receivables

suppliers of duriable goods

Duc to related parties

Net cash flows provided from (used in) operating sctivities
Income tax paid

Interest income - collecied

Interest income of treasury bills - collected

Dividends income - collected

Interest on selling consumer durable goods - Collected
Financing expenses - paid

Net cash flows provided from (used In) operating sctivities
Cash flows from Investing activities

(Payments) for investments in treasury bills

Proceeds from selling Held for sale assets

Proceeds Gom Financial investments in subsidiaries companies
“The company’s profit share in joint control investment
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds trom for) i in guarantee fund

Payments for investment under settlement

Payments for acquire projects under constructions
Payments for purchasing property, plant & equipment
Proceeds from sclling property, plant & equipment
Net cash flows used in Investing activities

Cash flows from finsncing activities

Dividends income - collected

Proceeds Gom capital increase

Dividends paid

Proceeds from Credit facilities and Loans from basks
Net cash flows provided from financing sctivities
Change in cash and cash equivalent during the period
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginoing of the period
Change in foreign cumrencies translation differences

Cash and cash equivalent batance at the end of the peried represented in:

Cash at banks

Investments at fair value through pro6it or loss (FVIPL)
Treasury bills less thas 91 days
Cbecks under collection

Deposits less than 3 moaths

Note no.

U]
©

()]
()]

9

a2

a9

®

©)

For the six moaths ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

1041 028 249 271 063 059
17 510329 9931 726
476794 476794
197 387 (519183)

( 290 348) -
(40 589 472) { 745 700)
(1077815) (1177 840)
( 32686) 2987738
( 919624) (6534 194)

20134 180 -

6020177 -

13189228 -
(37944217 (28123338)
(10251 170) (26039 029)
342319288 418 425 309
(5351 492) (91712233)
(7372833) {1442376)
31397170 2757220
150 789 324 5788 145
- 38 577 562
1491024 567 676 253 660

1467883 (12093 124
2072872 90 198 506
42978157 81297092

(16,865 374) 86 307 583

119510 677 (48091 705)

- (902888)

( 187 506) (2399336)
14116992 .

. 33 160 601

15467 (9580

(26372 745) (2782 749)

(30908 172) (28482 516)

(1222 266) 1377 345

(273 532766) (123571 17)

(793 693 643) (1699849 623)

(158859 717) -
23066 590 -

4630222 (4630222)
6775761 1693775
(4022793) 17592882
390 416 062 (934931 470)
(169 369 603) (155 721 898)
36882 789 26721 844
1066 000 5881639
10251170 .
4919323 1442376
(273 611 019) (298 977 202)
554722 (1355584 711)
(49043 789) 135878 467
7144 000 1698000
147 401 210 (28039 264)
(891 439909) (17743 485)
8391 554 (96 623 375)
( 180 103) (85 166)
- (125025 937)
(38342 (581 706)
(17775 120) 12125892
4098 447 1303876

(791 442 052) (141 344 482)

10251 170 26039029

. 3000
(380023 572) (134971 258)
1016236 044 1573877 188
646 463 642 1464947959

(144 423 638) (31981 234

1208879722 1246 542171
56617199 (2386 471)

1121 073 232 1212 174 466

889425828 831 149779
12487919 393281
189511 168 229800856
. 2410805

29648 317 148 419 745
1121073232 1212174 466

T accompanying notes from pages (6) to (74) an integral pant of these financial statements and are to be read therewith.
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

1- Background
1-1 Incorporation
CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments S.A.E was established on April 9, 2005
under the provisions of Law No.95 of 1992 and its executive regulations. The company
was registered in the Commercial Resister on 10 April 2005 under No. 166798 and
has obtained a license No. 353 from the Capital Market Authority on 24 May 2006.
And the extraordinary general assembly meeting decided in 20 March 2019 to change
the company's name to be CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments Company.

1-2  Purpose of the company

- The company’s purpose is to participate in the incorporation or to subscribe in the
capital increase of entities which issue securities, management of investment
funds, providing investment banking advisory services and to perform custody
operation, under the provisions of Law No. 95 of 1992 and its executive
regulations. The company has the right to have interest in or to participate with
other corporations with similar business activities or which may assist the
company in attaining its objectives in Egypt and outside Egypt. Also the company
has the right to merge or acquire those entities in accordance with the law and its
executive regulations.

- The Company’s duration is 25 years commencing from the registration date in the
commercial register.

- The company’s premises are located at Galleria 40 - 26th of July Corridor -Sheikh
Zayed 6 of October— Giza — Egypt

- CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments holds the following interests in its

subsidiaries:
Company name 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Commercial International Brokerage Company 98.96% 98.96%
CI Assets Management 99.53% 95.91%
CI Capital Investment Banking 99.57% 99.57%
Dynamic Trading Securities Company 99.97% 99.97%
Corporate Leasing Company (Egypt) “Corplease” 87.40% 87.40%
Micro finance project company (REEFY) 79.99% 79.99%
CI Mortgage Finance Company 99.90% 99.90%
CI Consumer Finance (Souhoola) 98.01% 97.68%

42.159% 27.44%



CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

m

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

o ’

1-3 Authorization of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a

resolution of the board of directors on 8 August 2021.

Basis of preparation

2-1 Statement of compliance

ik

]

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian

Accounting Standards and relevant Egyptian laws and regulations.

On 14 August 2018, the law number 176 for 2018 issued to organize finance lease
and Factoring, the first illustration of the law is to cancel working under law 95
for 1995 related to finance lease.
On 7 April 2019 Investment and corporation ministry approved cancelation of
Egyptian Accounting standard number 20 concerning regulation and Egyptian
accounting standards of finance lease and replaced by Egyptian Accounting
standard number 49 for leasing contracts which excision require to adopt new
appropriate philosophy to understand the Egyptian accounting standard and
consider the implementation process and the need for amendments or systems and
current instructions for the correct implementation that standard.

For accounting period on or after January 2020 Investment and corporation

ministry allow the early implementation if the Egyptian Accounting Standard (48)

implemented (contract revenue from customers in 2019 , other than this the

implementation date is annual report period which the law number 95 for 1995

cancelled in with amendments and law number 176 for 2018 issued for finance

lease and discounting as follows:

A- Finance lease contracts under law 95 for 1995 which should be accounted for
under Egyptian Accounting Standard number (20) (Accounting rules and
standards for finance leasing).

B- Finance lease contracts under law 176 for 2018 organize finance lease and
Factoring.

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian pounds (EGP) which
is the company’s functional currency and all financial information are presented by

(EGP).
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2-3  Use of estimates and judgments

2-4

Preparing these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards, requires management using judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, these related estimates and
assumptions depends on historical experience and other factors that company’s
management see it reasonable under current circumstances and events, and the actual
results may differs from these assumptions.

Estimates and assumptions are revisited on regular basis.

Any changes in accounting estimates are recognized in the period where the
estimates are changed whether the change affects only that period, or in the period
of change and the future periods if the change affects them both.

Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments are determined based on the market value of
the financial instrument or similar financial instruments at the date of the financial
statements without deducting any estimated future selling costs. The value of
financial assets are determined by the values of the current purchase prices for those
assets, while the value of financial liabilities is determined by the current prices that
can be settled by those liabilities.

In the absence of an active market to determine the fair value of financial instruments,
the fair value is estimated using various valuation techniques, taking into
consideration the prices of the transactions occurred recently, and guided by the
current fair value of other similar tools substantially — discounted cash flow method
—or any other evaluation method to get resulting values that can rely on.

When using the discounted cash flow method as a valuation method, the future cash
flows are estimated based on the best estimates of management. And discount rate
used is determined in the light of the prevailing market price at the date of the
financial statement that are similar in nature and conditions.

The most important clauses and notes used in these estimates and judgment are:

- Note (12) Debit customers

- Note (18, 19) Provisions.
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2-5 Change in accounting policies

On March 18, 2019, the Minister of Investment and International Cooperation
introduced amendments to some provisions of the Egyptian Accounting Standards
issued thereby by virtue of Decree No. 110 0f 2015 , which include some new accounting
standards as well as introducing amendments to certain existing standards published in
the official gazette on 25 April 2019.

As per the Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA) decree on April 12,2020, the
implementation of the new Egyptian Accounting Standards and the accompanied
amendments issued in decree No.69 of 2019 was postponed for the interim financial
statements of year 2020, due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. This was issued
in view of the current circumstances and the resulting economic and financial
implications as well as the application of precautionary measures including restrictions
on the presence of human resources with its full capacity on regular basis in face of the
widespread of the pandemic.

As per the Prime minister decision No 1871 for the year ended 2020 dated
20 September 2020 the application of the accounting standards No. (47) “Financial
Instruments”, No. (48) — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and No (49)
Lease Contracts” have been postponed tilll January 2021.

The company has early adopted the new standards EAS (47) Note n0.(30-6) , (30-8),
EAS (48) Note no. (30-14) and EAS (49) Note no. (30-13) including any consequential
amendments to other standards as it’s also required to apply EAS (1),(25),(26),and (40)
at the same date.

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of EAS (47) have been applied

using the modified retrospective approach, and therefore the comparative information has

not been restated.

The following tables show the effects of applying the new standards on the opening
balances on 1 January 2021:

2-5.1 The following table shows the effect of applying the new standards on retained
earnings opening balance.

Retained Earnings

Ending balance as at December 31, 2020 1 558 351 657
Effect of applying EAS 47 (22 336 094)
Balance as at January 1,2021 1536 015 563
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments

“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2-5.2 The following table shows the settlement between the items of the balance
sheet and the classification of financial assets on January 1, 2021:

Financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents

Financial investment at fair
value through OCI
Settlements Guarantees Fund

Debit-clients

Financial investment at fair
value through P&L
Treasury bills

Securitization transaction
Notes Receivables
Other assets

Total financial assets

2-53

FVTOCI /Equity FVTPL/Equity Amortized Cost Total

- - 850 356 226 850356 226

15 801 361 - - 15 801 361
6 983 563 - - 6 983 563

- - 10092958380 10092 958 380

- 150 549 878 - 150 549 878

- - 487 077 865 487 077 865

. - 124 543 238 124 543 238

- - 4630222 4630222

- - 156 354 070 156 354 070

22 784 924 150549878 11715920001 11 889 254 803

The following table shows the classifications and book value of the financial

assets according to Egyptian accounting standard No.26 and standard No.47

on January 1, 2021:

Old classification
Financial Assets EAS No. (26)
Cash and Cash equivalents Held to Maturity
Financial investment at fair value
through OCI Available for sale
Settlements Guarantees Fund Available for sale
Debit clients Loans and

receivables

Financial investment at fair value
through profit and loss Trading
Treasury bills Held to Maturity
Securitization transaction Held to Maturity
Notes Receivables Held to Maturity
other assets Held to Maturity

Total Financial assets

New classification
EAS No. (47)

Amortized Cost

FVTOCI
FVTOCI

Amortized Cost

FVTPL

Amortized Cost
Amortized Cost

Amortized Cost
Amortized Cost

-10-

Book Value Book Value
EAS No. (26) EAS No. (47)
850 356 226 849 698 699
15 801 361 15 801 361
6 983 563 6 983 563
10 092 958 380 10 079 339 665
150 549 878 150 549 878
487 077 865 487 077 865
124 543 238 116 969 735
4630222 4 628 920
156 354 070 155 869 023
11 889 254 803 11 866 918 709
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments

“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2-5.4 The following table shows the adjustments between the book value of the financial
assets according to EAS No. (26) and EAS No. (47) when applying the standard

No. (47) on January 1, 2021:

Financial assets

Amortized Cost
Cash and Cash equivalents

Debit clients

Treasury bills
Securitization transaction
Notes Receivables

Other assets

Total Amortized Cost

Financial investment at fair value
through OCI
Investment equity

Settlements Guarantees Fund

Total financial investment at fair
value through OCI

Financial investment at fair value
through P&L

Investment equity

Total financial assets at fair value
through P&L
Total financial assets

Book Value EAS 26 Impairmentloss Book Value EAS 47
31 Dec 2020 on assets 01 January 2021
850 356 226 (657 527) 849 698 699
10092 958 380 (13618 715) 10 079 339 665
487 077 865 - 487 077 865
124 543 238 (7 573 503) 116 969 735
4 630222 (1302) 4628 920
156 354 070 (485 047) 155 869 023
11 715 920 001 (22 336 094) 11 693 583 907
15 801 361 - 15 801 361
6 983 563 - 6 983 563
22 784 924 - 22 784 924
150 549 878 - 150 549 878
150 549 878 - 150 549 878
11 889 254 803 (22 336 094) 11 866 918 709

-11-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

3-  Financial investment at fair value through other comprehensive income

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Misr Clearance Company 10 772 145 10772 145
The Egyptian Company for re-financing 4 998 666 4 998 666
Commodities exchange 3 000 000 -
Other Companies 30 550 30550
18 801 361 15 801 361

Available for sale financial investments represents an investment in an unlisted company operating
in an in-active market and therefore, the investment was valuated using a cost method.

4- Investments in settlements guarantees fund

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Settlements Guarantees Fund 7 163 666 6983 563
5- Goodwill
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Corplease (5-1) 23018 082 23 018 082
Microfinance project (Reefy) (5-2) 325 786 462 325 786 462
348 804 544 348 804 544

S-1 Acquisition of Corplease Company

- During 2016 the company has acquired 72.95% from Corplease shares and voting
power, accordingly the company has control over this company starting from
1 January 2016, and this acquisition had been fully paid in cash with an amount of
EGP 236 991 693 and the net fair value of the company’s share in the acquired assets
and liabilities in the acquisition date was EGP 213 973 611 accordingly the excess
amount paid over the fair value of the company’s share in the acquired assets
amounted to EGP 23 018 082 and this amount had been recognized as goodwill

according to the study that had been prepared to such concern.

5-2 Acquisition of Microfinance project (Reefy)

- On 28 December 2017 the company had acquired 80% from “REEFY” For Micro
Finance Project with an acquisition cost amounted to EGP 373 040 574 (represents
the investment cost) and the paid amount is EGP 241 040 574 (As of 31 December

-12-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

2017 The fair value of investment cost to be paid is EGP 132 Millions). According
to the signed contractual purchase of shares and its agreed amendments, the company
paid EGP 90 Million on June 2018, EGP 23 537 369 on November 2018 and the
unpaid amount of the investment at 31 December 2018 is EGP 25 Million to be paid
at April 2019 which fair value as at 31 December 2018 is 23.5 Million. During
February 2019 the company paid the full amount EGP 25 million and charged EGP
1.4 million on profit and loss statement.

- The company had obtained a medium term loan amounted to EGP 120 million from
the Commercial International Bank - Egypt to finance the acquisition process secured
by pledging all of the acquired shares of the REEFY” For Micro Finance Project and
pledged 490,000 shares of Corplease represents (28.32%) of its capital as a guarantee
of the loan. The company paid the full amount in May 2018 and the pledge on all
shares has been lifted.

- The company’s share in the acquired net assets and liabilities available for
determination in the date of acquisition amounted to EGP 47 254 112, so the
acquisition cost paid in excess amounted to EGP 325 786 462, this amount is
considered as goodwill according to the related valuation study, the following
represent the amounts of assets and liabilities in the acquisition date :

Description Egyptian Pound
Cash and cash at banks 24 928 733
Treasury bills 12 750 000
Client (Net) 429 842 408
Property, plant and equipment 3470039
Other assets 633 971
Loans and credit facilities from bank (391 986 657)
Other liabilities (20 570 854)
Total 59 067 640
Non-controlling Interest (11 813 528)
Company’s share in the acquired assets available for
determination 47254112
Paid in acquisition (Cash Paid) 373 040 574
Goodwill 325 786 462

-13-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

6- Investment Property

=]
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Description Buildings
Egyptian Pound
A-Book Value
Cost as of 1-1-2020 47 679 388
Additions during the period -
Cost as of 30-6-2020 47 679 388
Cost as of 1-1-2021 47 679 388
Additions during the period -
Cost as of 30-6-2021 47 679 388
B-Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as of 1-1-2020 (567 589)
Depreciation for the period (476 794)
Accumulated depreciation as of 30-6-2020 (1044 383)
Accumulated depreciation as of 1-1-2021 (1521176)
Depreciation for the period (476 794)
Accumulated depreciation as of 30-6-2021 (1997 970)
Net book value as of 30 June 2021 45 681 418
Net book value as of 30 June 2020 46 635 005
Net book value as of 31 December 2020 46 158 212

-14-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

8- Operating lease as leasee

8-1 Right to use asset
30 June 2021
EGP
Cost
Beginning balance -
Additions 132 523 270
Ending balance 132 523 270
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the period -
Foreign Currency difference (15 065)
Amortization of Right to use asset (13 189 228)
Accumulated depreciation at the end of the period (13 204 293)
Net book value at the end of the period 119 318 977
8-2 Lease liability
30 June 2021
EGP

Beginning balance -
(Additions) (131 894 827)
Lease Payments during the period 14 132 057
Lease liability interest (6020 177)

(123 782 947)
Divided into
Lease liability — short term (16 930 637)
Lease liability — long term (106 852 310)

- On January 1%, 2021 the company has implemented Egyptian Accounting Standard EAS 49 on
contracts that the company represents “the lessee”, the right to use the asset and lease liabilities have
been recorded in present value of the future rent obligations remaining from lease contracts using
CBE announced Corridor as the discount rate at January 1%, 2021.

-16-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

9- Cash at banks

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Banks - current accounts * 838 950 192 717 824 381
Banks - deposits** 74 648 317 113 638 588
Cash on hand 8 669 735 18 893 257
Effect of adoption ﬁnanc.ial ?nstrument (657 527) i
standard No. (47) on beginning balance
Expected credit loss for the period 189 651 -
921 800 368 850 356 226

* The bank’s current account contains a holding balance at Commercial International Bank —
Egypt amounting to EGP 3 194 099 as of 30 June 2021 against EGP 1 971 833 as of
31 December 2020 according to the signing contract with one of the group's subsidiary, the
company must keep 5% cash coverage for the outstanding facility until contract maturity date
(on 23 April 2019 the subsidiary obtained the approval from the bank to reduce cash coverage
to be 2% from the outstanding balance) and settlement all outstanding balances as per the bank

agreement.

** The bank’s deposits contain an amount of EGP 3 909 150 a holding deposit against letter of

guarantee until 31 August 2021.

For the purpose of preparing the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent are presented

as follow:
30 June 2021

Cash at banks 889 425 828
Financial investments at fair value through

profit or loss 12487919
Treasury bills less than 91 days 189 511 168
Checks under collection -
Banks — deposits less than 3 months 29 648 317

30 June 2020
831 149 779

393 281

229 800 856
2 410 805
148 419 745

1121073 232

1212 174 466

-17-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

10- Treasury bills

Treasury bills less than 91 days
Treasury bills 91-182 days
Treasury bills 273- 364 days *
Unearned interest

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
344 000 000 387 500 000

25 000 000 100 000 000

5 000 000 5 000 000

(4 951 785) (5 422 135)

369 048 215 487 077 865

* Treasury bills with a face value of EGP 5 000 000 as at 30 June 2021
is pledged for banks as a guarantee for loans and credit facilities granted to Reefy

Company. Note (17)

11- Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Mutual funds certificates

Investments at Egyptian listed companies

12- Debit clients - Net

Brokerage clients
Micro finance clients

Finance lease clients
Other clients

Less: Expected credit loss

Expected credit loss movement as follows: -

Impairment at 31 December 2020

Effect of adoption financial instrument
standard No. (47)

Expected credit loss at 1 January 2021 adjusted

Charged during the period
Foreign currency Differences
Expected credit loss Reverse

Expected credit loss at the end of the period

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
12 487 919 8 589 225

182 550 125 141 960 653
195 038 044 150 549 878

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
585 486 780 654 372 839

1 281 178 463 1 005 933 522
9 280 339 694 8 485 564 959
282 853 692 230984 818

11 429 858 629 10 376 856 138
(318 157 927) (283 897 758)
11111700 702 10 092 958 380
283 897 758 229 320 505
13618 715 -

297 516 473 229 320 505

20 871 503 57 418 427
(229 352) (357 549)
(697) (2 483 625)

318 157 927 283 897 758

The debit client (net) represented as follow:

-18 -




CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

1]

= 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
) Debit Clients — Non-current 3 843 427 500 3 548 602 025
Debit clients — current 7 268 273 202 6 544 356 355

11 111 700 702 10 092 958 380

= 13- Joint control investment

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Taleem for Management Service 1277912 571 1267614 586

= Th ’ fit share in joint control

} - € company’s profit share in joint contro 291 439 909 98 710 886
nvestments

The company’s dividends share in joint control

. (1 217 449 678) (88 412 901)
vestments

951 902 802 1277912 571

- During September 2019, CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments , along with a
consortium of co-investors, completed the acquisition of a 60% interest in Taleem
Management Services Company (SAE), which controls and operates Nahda University in
Beni Suef as a joint control.( The acquisition was executed through a newly established
investment vehicle “EGY EDU Invest”, in which CI Capital owning 23.34%). And during
September 2019 the company paid an amount of 10.7 million dollar, and in March 2020 an
amount 0f 9.6 million dollar paid so the direct investment of CI Capital in EGY EDU Invest
Capital is 27.44%. On 26 January 2021 EGY EDU invest has been decreased by 3.7 million
dollars and CI Capital Holding share is 1.016 million dollars. And, on May 2021 CI Capital
Holding has increased its investments by 12.2 million dollars, and, on May 2021 the capital
of EGY EDU invest has been decreased by 69.6 million dollars and CI Capital Holding
share is 19.1 million dollars.

- The investment has been recorded by acquisition cost the affected by the company’s share
in profit of joint control investment after acquisition date until the fair value study and
goodwill calculation (if it found).

H =

| S |

5|
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

- Summary of the associate financial statement: .
31 August 2019 (Date of Acquisition)

Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
1361 193 622 1126 584 160 221 633 401 172 267 327
30 June 2021

Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
1497 478 582 333105 604 365 855 049 267 184 246

- On5 April 2021 the initial public offering taleem for Management service company in the EGX
and there is 48% has been sold from the company’s shares, IPO price EGP 5.75 and EGY EDU
realized capital gain amounted EGP 900.7 Million (CI Capital Holding share is EGP 103.16

Million).

14- Other assets

Deposits with others
Accrued revenues
Prepaid expenses

Advances payments for purchases of fixed assets

Projects under construction

Debit cutting tax

Sundry debtors (net)

Accrued debtors arising from selling assets held for sale
Accrued debtors arising from written off debts

Accrued dividends

Effect of adoption financial instrument standard No. (47) on
beginning balance

Expected credit loss for the period

-20-

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
4 403 837 4479 369
43 230 306 37 723 634
16 550 627 16 857 707
3 483 257 6 835397
224 000 185 658

1 400 568 2 049 684
22 248 583 22 064 820
2 025103 -
9 358 168 -
- 66 157 801

(485 047) -
(201 583) -
102 237 819 156 354 070
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the six months ended on June 30, 2021
(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

15- Capital

The company’s authorized capital amounts EGP 2 billion and issued and paid-in
capital amounts EGP 549 946 000 distributed on 54 994 600 shares of par value EGP
10 per share.

The company’s issued capital has been decreased by the accumulated deficit amounted
to EGP 238 489 210 to become EGP 311 456 790 distributed over
31 145 679 shares according to the approval of the company’s extraordinary general
assembly meeting held on July 10, 2016.

57 Shares (Treasury stock) has been redeemed according to the extraordinary general
assembly meeting in 20 September 2017 so the issued and paid in capital amount EGP
311 456 220 distributed on 31 145 622 shares.

On 15 October 2017 the Board of Directors approved the increase of the issued and
paid in capital from EGP 100 000 000 to amount EGP 411 456 220 distributed on

41 145 622 shares and the procedures to amend the commercial register has been
completed in 19 December 2017.

On 17 January 2018 the company’s extraordinary general assembly approved the
splitting of capital shares 1 to 10 and accordingly the amounting of the par value per
share from EGP 10 share to EGP 1 share and take all the necessary legal action.
According to the extraordinary general assembly meeting dated 25 March 2018 they
approved a partial offering of CI Capital shares in the local market through initial
public offering, while on 18 April 2018 the FRA had given the acceptance to issue CI
Prospectus indicating the selling of maximum number of 225 637 282 shares of
company’s shareholders representing a stake of 54.8% stock capital.

On 30 April 2018, the company had offered 225 637 282 shares amounted EGP 7.7
per share with total value of EGP 1 737 407 071. Also the extraordinary general
assembly approved the capital increase for CI Capital through proceeding the issuance
of 132 727 813 shares through a closed subscriptions for old shareholders with same
offering price, the non-selling old shareholders concession their rights in the capital
increase. on 21 May the commercial register had been amended by the increase of
issued and paid up capital by EGP 132 727 813 to be EGP 544 184 033 distributed on
544 184 033 shares with par value 1 Egyptian pound full paid.

On 21 May the company increased the issued and paid up capital by
132 727 813 shares for EGP 7.7 per share, that represents EGP 1 par value per share
and EGP 6.7 issuance premium per share.

221 -



ClI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

The total amount received related to the capital increase transaction was EGP
1022 004 160 that represents EGP 132 727 813 as a capital increase in issued and paid
up capital and EGP 889 276 347 as a gross amount of issuance premium with a total
cost of EGP 30 728 251 (59% of total IPO issuance cost) to get EGP 858 548 096

as a net issuance premium.

On 12 June 2019 the board of director approved the increase of the Company's paid in

and issued capital from EGP 544 184 033 to EGP 800 000 000 with an amount of EGP

255 815 967 by Distributing 255 815 967 bonus shares as per the Board consensus

held on 12th of June 2019. This increase will be financed from the share premium

reserve account to be EGP 602 732 129. The resultant stocks are to be awarded to the

company’s shareholders as 0.47009 bonus share for every 1 share and distribute the

residual from the approximation on small investors, and this decision is approved by

the general assembly on 2 September 2019 and registered in the Commercial Register

on 18 September 2019.

According to the extraordinary general assembly meeting dated 19 March 2020 they

approve to increase the issued and paid capital of the company from EGP

800 000 000 to EGP 1 000 000 000 by an increase of EGP 200 000 000 distributed on

200 000 000 share by a par value of EGP 1 to be funded from the issuance premium

to be balanced EGP 402 732 129, the shares resulting to be distributed on the

shareholders as 0.25 free share per 1 original share , with rounding up fractions for the

small shareholders, and registered in the Commercial Register on 10 June 2020.

On 16 March 2021 Bank Misr has been completed 90% ownership of Ci capital

holding shares throughout present compulsory purchase amounted 4.7 EGP per share.

16- Other liabilities

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Accrued expenses 120 143 694 167 375 680
Sundry creditors * 171 472 901 39426 574
Finance lease contracts collected in advance 4684 124 7 055 364
Suppliers of durable goods 11 612 858 4 837 097
Deferred revenue 29 774 232 13 433 559
Dividends payable 101 387 456 -
Due to governmental authorities 67 592 772 11 853 932
506 668 037 243 982 206

*The sundry creditors balance as at 30 June 2021 includes an amount of EGP
47 165 623 which represents cash collected from contracts of the 8th securitization as its payable

to custodian (Banque Misr) against 18 629 486 as at 31 December 2020.

-22-



Ile

(01) 310N «
96¢ LV8 £VS L LS T00LIES STLYIYr80L S SOL 06T 89L 9 899 TP €8 1 LB OIL8YS 1 %10,
6L SELILTS vCe 806 TIv 9 815 08¢ 961 ¢ PET 96T 991 S 9LTSSESLO T 060 C19 976 +punog wend43g
(d0d 03 Jusreamby)
0911 eLee 8¥C £60 ¥06 1 01T +¥¥0 TIS 1 ILY ¥66 10€ T 26¢ L90 09L LLL 860 209 soWULIMO USIAI0) M SUBOT
0207 12quadaq 1¢ 120z dung ¢ 0207 12quiddn( 1¢ [20Z 2ung o¢ 020T 12qudd( 1€ 120z 2ung o¢
JO S8 dueeyg uon.rod JTALIND)-UON] uon.rod jmam) Adud.1amd euonouny

:SMOJ[0] sk sanIAnoe dnoid ay) soueuy o3 ‘syueq

9 M pSuSIs $1eNU0D oY 0} SUIPI0OSE (70T PqUISIS( [€ PUE [Z0T aunf O JO Se SULO[ SY) WOY PIZI[HN JUNOUE oY) Jussaidal sueo

sueoy-LI

BTN I |

(Pa1e3s astmIoO SSO[UN O UT UMOYS S SUMOWE [[e S330U ) Uf)

1T0T “0¢ Sun{ WO PapUS STUOW XIS S 10

SIUSWIEYS [EIOURUL) PAIBPIOSUOD O} 0} SAION

dIqery Ul pansst A[[euI3LI0 SJUSTIOJE]S [RIOURUY PIJEPI[OSUOD JO UONR[SWRI]
Luedwo) soo1g ymor wend4ASy,,

S1UURSIAU] [eIoUeUL 10 Surpjoy [ende) 1D

N EE @ H BE O M @ m



CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

= Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
= Notes to the consolidated financial statements
= For the six months ended on June 30, 2021
= (In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)
| 18; Provisions
] No longer
] Balance as of Charged . .
. Used during required Balance as of
31 December during the ] .
. the period during the 30 June 2021
2020 period .
period
_ Claims provision * 24 579 656 - (919 624) (32 686) 23 627 346
- Legal claims provision 300318 - - - 300318
24 879 974 - (919 624) (32 686) 23 927 664
|
| No longer
Balance as of Charged . . Balance as of
. Used during required
31 December during the . 31 December
the year during the
= 2019 year 2020
d year
= Claims provision * 32413 812 986 429 (8 820 585) - 24 579 656
~ Legal claims provision 300 318 - - - 300318
' 32714 130 986 429 (8 820 585) - 24 879 974
[ * Claims provision represents claims expected from other parties related to the group
B operations, information related to this issue is not disclosed according to Accounting
Standards because the management think this could affect the negotiation with those parties,
R the management is regularly review these provisions annually with any updates to this issues.
19- Employees end of service benefits
Forei
O Balance as of Ch.a rged I{sed orelgn Balance as of
during the  duringthe currency
" 31 December 2020 i . . 30 June 2021
- period period differences
E d i
g [Dmployees end of service 23960854 3139770 (187506)  (25964) 26 887 154
benefits
23 960 854 3139770 (187 506) (25 964) 26 887 154
Balance as of dCh;:g:: Used during F::elil: Balance as of
31 December 2019 e the year c. reacy 31 December 2020
year difference
f
Employees end o 20910 853 5573409  (2469040) (54 368) 23 960 854
service benefits
20910 853 5573409 (2469 040) (54 368) 23 960 854

-24-



im

=

3

-

CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

20- Related parties’ transactions
Misr Bank (shareholder)

30 June 2021
Financial position items debit / (credit) Income statement items revenue / (expense)
Cash at banks * 37057 124 Interest income -
Loans & Credit facilities** (2 853 205 785) Financing expenses (111 138 836)
Custodian — securitization (37 584 918) G & A expenses -

* The transactions with the commercial international bank are presented till 16 March 2021 which
is the acquisition date from Misr bank on the controlling percentage for ci capital holding

- Commercial International Bank-Egypt (shareholder)

31 December 2020 30 June 2020
Financial position items debit / (credit) Income statement items revenue / (expense)
Cash at banks * 369 305 486 Interest income 16 042 778
Custodian — securitization (4 022 793) Financing expenses (35 562 841)
Loans & Credit facilities** (439105222) G & A expenses (188 627)
Operating revenues 1616 000

*  Part of cash at banks.
**  Part of credit facilities.

-25.
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

22- General and administrative expenses

For the six months ended For the three months ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Wages and salaries * 379 797 239 199 338 476 114 200 859 107 321 584
Empl d of servi
- e 3139 770 2 757 220 1575210 1360 723
benefits
. Other expenses 107 232 703 88 258 712 62 747 481 38 068 075
P , plant & i t
roperty, plant & equipmen 17 510 329 9931 726 9 000 800 5 084 632
depreciation
507 680 041 300 286 234 187 524 350 151 835 014

* Wages and salaries account include amount of EGP 150 789 324 which represent the

amount charged to the statement of profit and loss resulted from The employee exercised
the right of shares payment due to compulsory purchase of majority of the company’s

shares as they obtained cash value for designated shares after deducting par value for
share.

23- Securitization transactions

The securitization transaction debtors amounted by EGP 148 562 255 as of 30 June 2021
versus EGP 124 543 237 as of 31 December 2020 represent the net book value of the
Company’s right at the end of securitization portfolios surplus, and the following table
shows the fair values of these rights at the end of securitization portfolios surplus, which
the custodian is obliged to repay to the Company as the assignor in those issuances at the
maturity of the securitization bonds or by its accelerated payment, and after the full
payment of all entitlements of bondholders both principal and interest and the payment
of all other obligations.

Fair value of the company's rights at the

end of the securitization process 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
7% securitization 3 596 334 9351 711
8t securitization 64 969 409 116 589 847
10th securitization 20 621 875 21270 003
Total 89 187 618 147 211 561

-28-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments

“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

The measurement of fair value of the company's rights is classified at the end of the
securitization process within the third level of the fair value chain according to inputs the

valuation methods, and the following table illustrates the valuation methods used to

measure fair values as well as the most important inputs used:

Evaluation methods and inputs

Description

Fair value of surplus
securitization portfolio
after all obligations are
paid

Evaluation Method/Methods

Discounted Cash Flows:

The financial model of the
evaluation takes into account
the present value of expected
cash flows, discounted at a
modified discount rate to reflect
related risks. Projected cash
flows, taking into account
contractual rental values after
they affect potential changes for
the rate of deposit and lending
for one night (Corridor)
according to the expected
changes to the future rate of
return from BMI (Business
Monitor International) This is in
the case of cash inflows, as
financial leasing contracts bear
variable rates of return.

This is in addition to a variable
rate of return on securitization
bonds. "Outflows of cash" are
related to the Treasury bills
price 182 days plus a risk
premium for the sixth and
seventh versions only, since the
fourth and fifth issuance bonds
hold fixed rates of return.

-29.

Important input for fair value
measurement

1-Cash flows have been adjusted at
moderate estimated default rates for
reimbursement and average
estimated rates of reimbursement
and assuming a 100% delay in
premiums for one month with an
estimate of a year-long delay in the
history of the securitizations
portfolios based on average delay in
the previous years .

2- Cash flows have been adjusted at
moderate estimated rates for
accelerated reimbursement.

3- The return to the calculation of
the outcome was calculated at an
average annual estimated rate of
return on investment.

4- The surplus of the securitization
portfolio resulting from the
valuation method and the above
assumptions has been deducted at
an expected discount rate (the return
of the Egyptian Treasury bonds)
plus the risk associated with the
portfolios and securitization bonds
in accordance with the risks of each
portfolio.
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the six months ended on June 30, 2021
(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

24- Operating revenues

For the six months ended

For the three months ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Custod
Operatig'na“d other 3 436 246 3 498 412 349 275 272 274
Brokerage 97 995 490 101 083 391 44 206 789 50 340 437
Fund and portfolio
Ena gemgnt 36 402 589 15 440 887 29 061 302 5 897 606
Investment banking 28 509 896 21 222 074 733 948 1616 002
Finance leasing operation 524 291 079 602 562 466 256 247 590 298 555 281
Microfinance 268 430 767 186 196 139 140 990 449 91 603 109
Mortgage Finance 14 762 149 7 729 480 6 020 093 3 812 840
Consumer Finance 18 011 156 17 616 163 6 086 010 8 740 386

991 839 372 955 349 012 483 695 456 460 837 935

25-Income Tax

For the six months ended

For the three months ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Current income tax (79 882 313) (76 100 398) (29 783 548) (30 889 763)
Deferred tax 16 692 848 10 420 140 (61 590) 956 962
(63 189 465) (65 680 258) (29 845 138) (29 932 801)
25-1 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax Recognized in Income
v eneis Deferred tax assets
liabilities statement
. (ESOP & Provisions)
(Fixed assets) (expense) / revenue
1 t31D b
Balance at 31 December (32 215 044) 5973 559
2020
zed in In
Recogmized in Income 16 948 297 (255 449) 16 692 848
statement
Balance at 30 June 2021 (15266 747) 5718 110

-30-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

26- Assets classified as held for sale

Description 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
EGP EGP

Cars 2 288 796 2453 823

Buildings - 6294 158

2 288 796 8 747 981

27- Share based Payments

According to the extraordinary general assembly meeting on September 2, 2019,
the company launched new Employees Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) scheme and
issued equity-settled share-based payments. Eligible employees should complete
a term of 2 years of service and appraisal of at least good in the past two years to
issue shares ,The employee to have the right in option to purchase ordinary shares
at face value (right to share) that will be issued on the vesting date, the equity
instruments is to be recognized at it’s fair value at the grant date and to accrue
over the company statement of profit and loss.

The fair value for such equity instruments is measured using the Black-Scholes

pricing model
- the accrued shares (options) as of December 31 2020 as follow :
Maturity Exercise price Fair value Number of
date EGP EGP shares
March 2022 1.00 1.16766 28 308 338
March 2023 1.00 1.10584 16 691 662

The employee exercised the right of shares payment due to compulsory purchase of majority of
the company’s shares as they obtained cash value for designated shares after deducting par value
for share.

-31-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

28- Tax status of the parent company
28-1 Corporate tax
- The company submit the tax returns and pays accrued tax on the dates specified
by law.
- The period from 2006/2008 has been examined and paid.
- For year 2009, the company was not within the sample of tax inspection.
- The period from 2010/ 2014 were inspected and waiting for inspection result.
- The period from 2015/2017 were not included under the inspection sample,
therefore the tax returns are approved.
28-2 Salary tax
- The Company's salary tax has been examined, paid, and settled since inception
31/12/2011.
- Random estimation for years 2012/2015 takes place, but objection has been raised
in the legal time and repeating of the examination takes place.

28-3 Stamp tax

- The Company's stamp tax has been examined, paid and settled since the
operations start up until 31/7/2006.

- Random estimation for years 2006/2013 takes place, but objection has been
raised in the legal time and the decision has been taken to repeat the examination,
in addition to examination for the years 2014/2015 and the inspection is not
starting until the reporting date.

29- Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial
instruments, which measured at fair value or amortized cost or at condition cost.

-32-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

30- Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently with those applied
in all periods presented. On March 28, 2019, the Minister of Investment and
International Cooperation amended some provisions of the Egyptian Accounting
Standards issued by Minister of Investment Decision No. 110 of 2015, which include
some new accounting standards and amendments to some of the existing standards. The

following is an overview of the most important accounting policies applied in preparing
the company’s financial statements on January 1, 2021 and before J anuary 1, 2021
30-1 Foreign currencies

30-1-1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective
functional currencies of Group companies at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date.

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate used when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss
However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of
the following items are recognized in OCI.

Available-for-sale equity investments (except on impairment, in
which case foreign currency differences that have been recognized in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss);

A financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a
foreign operation to the extent that the hedge is effective.

Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are
effective.

-33-
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CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

30-2

30-1-2 Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated
in the translation reserve, except foreign currencies translation
difference to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to
NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such
that control, significant influence, or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

If the company disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains significant influence or joint control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

When the company disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Business Combination

The company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition

method when control is transferred to the company.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair

value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.

Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment, any gain on

a bargain purchase is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of

debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the

settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally

recognized in profit or loss.
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- Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the
definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re
measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other
contingent consideration is re measured at fair value at each reporting date
and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognized in consolidated profit or loss.

30-3 Subsidiaries and associates
30-3-1 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company.

- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

- The company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and could affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

- The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

- Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Changes in the company’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

- Loss of control
When the company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of OCI related. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured
at fair value when control is lost.

- Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra- company balances and transactions, and any unrealized profit and
loss arising from intra- company transactions, are eliminated.
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Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
company’s interest in the investee Unrealized losses are eliminated in the
same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment of assets.

30-3-2 Investments accounted for by equity method

The investments accounted for using the equity method include its share

in the associates and the company doesn't has any rights in assets and

associated arrangements liabilities.

The associate company is which has significant influence, which is the

power to participate in the financial and operating policies of an entity but

is not control or joint control.

Joint venture is a joint agreement whereby the parties that have joint

control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method

so under which the investment is initially recognized at the transaction

price including transaction costs.

Subsequently the consolidated financial statement adjusted to reflect the

investor's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of

the associate.
30-4 Property, plant and equipment
30-4-1 Recognition and measurement

- Items of property, plant, and equipment are measured at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses note no. (7).

- Purchased Computer programs, which represent an integral part and
effective for devices are capitalized as part of these devices.

- The cost of certain items of property, plant and equipment. If
significant parts of an item of property, plant, and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant, and equipment.

30-4-2 Capital gain or loss
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant, and equipment
is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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30-4-3 Subsequent expenditure

30-4-4

The cost of replacing a component of one of the fixed assets as part of the
fixed asset is considered when existence of adequate prediction of the
future economic benefits to the company.

Depreciation

All property, plant, and equipment are stated at historical cost, less any
Residual value with straight-line method over the useful life of the asset,
the following table represents the estimated useful life of assets estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method as follows:

Asset Estimated useful life
Communication devices 2 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3-5 years
Vehicles 4 years
Machinery and equipment 8 years

30-5 Intangible assets and goodwill

30-5-1

30-5-2

30-5-3

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets

The intangible assets include computer programs, which are amortized
using straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and the
amortization period range is from 25 months to 4 years.

Other acquired intangible assets are recognized from accumulated
activities and have specific useful life less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment loss.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal company comprising assets and liabilities,
are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly probable that they will be
recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.
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Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment
loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is
allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee
benefit assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to
be measured in accordance with the company’s other accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for
distribution and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment are no longer amortized or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

30-6 Financial instruments

-Policies applied from 1 January 2021

-EAS No. (47) outlines regulations for the recognition of financial assets and

liabilities and retained earnings on 1 January 2021 and the comparative figure did
not adjusted.

-Effective 1 January 2021, EAS No. (47) substantially changed accounting and
financial reporting in three key areas: classification and measurement of financial

assets, impairment and hedge accounting.

Business model, classification and measurement

Business model

- The company determines the nature of the business model by considering the

way in which the financial assets are managed to achieve the business objective
as determined by management.

- On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as measured at:

amortized cost (“AC”);
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

- Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless

the company changes its business model for managing financial assets in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.
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- A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it meets the following
conditions:
e it is held within a business model that has an objective to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
o the contractual terms of the financial asset result in cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(“SPPI”).

- A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following
conditions:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset result in cash flows that are SPPI.

- On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

- Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets.

- Oninitial recognition, the company may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

- Measuring or recognition instability (sometimes, this referred to “accounting
inconsistency”) and this may arise otherwise.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset
isheld at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed,
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
eamning contractual interest income, maintaining a interest rate profile, matching
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the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
company’s management;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- How managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods,
the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

- Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

- Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the company considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

- Prepayment and extension features; and
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- Terms that limit the company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.

non-recourse features).

- A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and

interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid

amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which

may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its

contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an

amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued

(but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable

compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion

if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at
FVTPL

Financial assets at
amortized cost

Debt investments at
FVOCI

Equity investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI
and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.
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Policies applied before 1 January 2021

- The company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

- The company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the following categories:

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities

category.

30-6-1

30-6-2

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities — Recognition
and De-recognition

The company initially recognizes loans, receivables, and debt securities
issued on the date when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the company is
recognized as a separate asset or liability.

The company derecognizes a financial liability- when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to release the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Non-derivative financial assets — Measurement

First: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is
classified as held for-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition.
Directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as
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30-6-3

incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognized in profit or loss.

Second: Held-to-maturity financial investment

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs by acquired or issued financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Third: Loans and receivables

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs by acquired or issued financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Fourth: Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs by acquired or issued financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign currency
differences on debt instruments are recognized in OCI and accumulated in
the fair value reserve. When these assets are derecognized, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities — Measurement

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it
is classified as held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs by acquired or issued
financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or
loss.

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
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recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

30-7 Capital
30-7-1 Common stocks

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of Common shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction
costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with EAS 24
income tax.

30-7-2 Repurchase and reissuance of common stocks (treasury stocks)

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs is recognized
as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
stocks and are presented in the treasury stocks reserve. When treasury shares
are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an
increase in equity and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is
presented within share premium.

30-8 Impairment

- Policies applied from 1 January 2021

- As allowed by EAS No. (47), the company applies two impairment models for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI:

the simplified approach model for trade receivables related to fees and
commission under the scope of EAS No. (48) “Revenues from Contracts
with Customers”; and

the general approach model for other financial assets, including financial
assets under the scope of EAS No. (47).

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated
Income Statement within the credit losses expenses.

Simplified approach model

With regards to trade receivables related to fees and commission, the
simplified approach model for determining the impairment is performed in
two steps:

any trade receivable in default is individually assessed for impairment; and
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- ageneral reserve is recognized for all other trade receivables (including those
not past due) based on the determined historical loss rates and carryforward
losses expectations.

General approach model
- The general model impairment requirements of EAS No. (47) apply to all

credit exposures that are measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, except the
positions covered by simplified model as abovementioned.

- For purposes of the impairment policy below, these instruments are referred
to as (“Financial Assets”).

- The determination of impairment losses and allowance moves from an
incurred credit loss model whereby credit losses are recognized when a
defined loss event occurs under previous accounting standard, to an
expected credit loss model under EAS No. (47), where allowances are taken
upon initial recognition of the Financial Asset, based on expectations of
potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition.

- The company uses three main components to measure ECL. These are
Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default (“L.GD”) and Exposure
at Default (“EAD”).

- The probability of tripping the corresponding parties is derived from internal
group assessments. The Group allocates the probability of default for each
exposure of the counterparty based on the economic environment in which
the customer works, considering the relevant quantitative and qualitative
information and quality available.

- Loss estimates when you stumble are independent of the client's probability
of default. Loss models when tripping ensure that the main drivers of losses,
including the quality of the warranty, are reflected in the loss factor when
the specified stumble.

- Exposure when it stumbles is defined as the expected amount of credit risk
to the counterparty at the time of its stumble. The exposure model is
designed when you default on the life of the financial asset considering the
expected payment files.
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- EAS No. (47) Introduces a three-stage approach to impairment for Financial

Assets that are not credit-impaired at the date of origination or purchase.

This approach is summarized as follows:

Stage 1: The company recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit losses. This represents the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected
within 12 months of the reporting date, assuming that credit risk has not
increased significantly after initial recognition.

Stage 2: The company recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses for those Financial Assets
which are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. This requires the computation of ECL
based on lifetime probability of default, lifetime loss given default and
lifetime exposure at default that represents the probability of default
occurring over the remaining lifetime of the Financial Asset. Allowance
for credit losses are higher in this stage because of an increase in credit
risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considered compared
to 12 months in Stage 1.

Stage 3: The company recognizes a loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses, via the expected recoverable cash
flows for the asset, for those Financial Assets that are credit impaired.
For further detail see following paragraph “Credit-impaired Financial
Assets in Stage 3”.

The company calculates expected credit losses for each financial asset
individually. Similarly, the determination of the need to transfer
between stages is made on an individual asset basis.
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Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Under EAS No. (47), when determining whether the credit risk (i.e., risk of default)
of a Financial Asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information based on the company’s historical experience, credit risk assessment
and forward-looking information (including macro-economic factors). The
assessment of significant credit deterioration is key in determining when to move
from measuring an allowance based on 12-month ECLs to one that is based on
lifetime ECLs (i.e., transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2).

Credit-impaired Financial Assets in Stage 3

At each reporting date, the company reviews the indicators for impairment of
receivables balances, in order to take the necessary actions to account for
impairment against the amounts that may not be collected from customers.

The study is necessary to ensure that clients own and maintain a portfolio of shares
to cover the debt owed to them - enabling the company to take necessary measures
to preserve the company's right in case of any amounts due from customers and
failure or delay in payment. The calculation using aging reports will not be
applicable on brokerage receivables as there is no specified or expected time frame
for clearing or collection, however a provision is to be formed for the difference
between debit due balance and the value of owned shares (collateral).

For Financial Assets considered to be credit-impaired, the ECL allowance covers
the amount of loss the company is expected to suffer. The estimation of ECLs is
done on a case-by-case basis for non-homogeneous portfolios, or by applying
portfolio-based parameters to individual Financial Assets in these portfolios via
the company’s ECL model for homogeneous portfolios.

Forecasts of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered.
The lifetime expected losses are estimated based on the probability-weighted
present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
the company under the contract; and the cash flows that the company expects to
receive.
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Collateral for Financial Assets considered in the Impairment Analysis
EAS No. (47) requires cash flows expected from collateral and other credit

enhancement to be reflected in the ECL calculation. The following are key aspects
with respect to collateral and guarantees:

- Eligibility of collateral, i.e. which collateral should be considered in the ECL
calculation;

Collateral evaluation, i.e. what collateral (liquidation) value should be used; and
- Projection of the available collateral amount over the life of a transaction.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The accounting estimates and judgments related to the impairment of Financial
Assets is a critical accounting estimate because the underlying assumptions used
can change from period to period and may significantly affect the company’s
results of operations.

In assessing assets for impairments, management judgment is required,
particularly in projecting future economic information and scenarios where
circumstances of economic and financial uncertainty, when developments and
changes to expected cash flows can occur both with greater rapidity and less
predictability. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may
differ from the estimates used by management and consequently may cause actual
losses to differ from reported allowances.

Any effect on the carrying amounts of financial assets, liabilities and retained

earnings at 1 January 2020 to EAS No. (47) was recognized as an adjustment to
opening retained earnings.

Policies applied before 1 January 2020
30-8-1 Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including
an interest in an equity accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
o  Default or delinquency by a debtor;
* Restructuring of an amount due to the company on terms that the
company would not consider otherwise in another situation.
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First:

® Indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

®  Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

o The disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

e  Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
expected cash flows from a company of financial assets.
For an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of
impairment includes a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost. The company considers that 20% declining is important,
and nine months is considered as prolonged.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an
individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant assets are
individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are
then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out
by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the company uses historical information
on the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an
adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.
An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.

When the company considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off, If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss.
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Second: Available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by
reclassifying the losses accumulated in the OCI accumulated and fair
value reserve to profit or loss. The amount reclassified the derecognized
amount of accumulated loss from equity and recognized in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortization) and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss.
If the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
subsequently increases and the increase can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through
profit or loss.

Third: Financial Investment accounted for using equity method
An impairment loss in respect of an equity-accounted investee is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying
amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and is reversed
if there has been an estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

30-8-2  Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets (other than biological assets, investment property,
inventory and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

-51-



il

H m N

CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized in the previous years.

30-9 Provisions

30-9-1

Provisions are recognized when the company has a legal or constructive
current obligation because of a past event and it is probable that a flow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

Provisions are reviewed at the financial position date and amended (when
necessary) to represent the best current estimate.

Employees end of service provision (Finance leasing activity)

The company contributes to the government’s social insurance system
according to the social insurance law. It also adopts defined contribution
plan according to which the company will fund the scheme to any staff
member by accruing 10% of the gross monthly salary of any staff member
excluding allowances.

Vesting conditions depends on duration of service as follows:
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Percentage of

balance paid
Less than 5 years -

Duration of service

More than 5 years up till 6 years 20%
More than 6 years up till 7 years 40%
More than 7 years up till 8 years 60%
More than 8 years up till 9 years 80%
More than 9 years and less than 10 years 90%
10 years or more 100%
Staff reaching the age 60 100%
In case of death or total permanent disability 100%

30-9-2 Impairment losses of (micro finance financed loans)
The impairment losses of microfinance loans is estimated in light of the
basis and rules of law no.141 for year 2014 pertaining to companies
operating in microfinance and the provision in case of:

Client’s balances according to delay in payment Percen.ta.ge
of provision
Client’s balances which are regular in payment or with delay not exceeding a %2
week
Delay on payment for more than one week till 30 days %10
Delay on payment for more than 30 days till 60 days %25
Delay on payment for more than 60 days till 90 days %50
Delay on payment for more than 90 days till 120 days %70
Delay on payment for more than 120 days %100
Rescheduled balances %50

30-9-3 Provision for customer financing risk (Mortgage Financing Sector)
The customer financing risk provision is set at 1% of the value of the

Description Credit risk level % Provision type  Number of delay payments
regular debts
Acceptable risks 1% General -
Risks need special care 5% General 1
Irregular debts
Substandard 20% Specific 2
Doubtful 50% Specific 3-5
Bad debts 100% Specific 6 and above

financing balance granted to customers. In accordance with the decision of
the General Authority for Mortgage Finance on July 11, 2006 regarding the

-53-



[l

{1

CI Capital Holding for Financial Investments
“Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Arabic
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the six months ended on June 30, 2021

(In the notes all amounts are shown in EGP unless otherwise stated)

rules for the classification of assets and provisions for losses, the provision
is charged according to the following:

30-9-4 Impairment losses of (Consumer Finance sector)
The impairment losses of consumer finance loans is estimated in light of In
accordance with the decision of the General Authority no (101) for the year
ended 2020 issued on 22 June 2020.
As follow the schedule of the percentage of provisions related to the delays
of payments (except for vehicles):

. . . Percentage

Client’s balances according to delay in payment ..
of provision

Client’s balances which are regular in payment or with delay not exceeding 30 days %1
Delay on payment for more than 30 days till 90 days %10
Delay on payment for more than 90 days till 120 days %30
Delay on payment for more than 120 days till 180 days %50
Delay on payment for more than 180 days %100

For vehicles the provisions for the doubtful debts are recorded as presented
in the following schedule: -

Client’s balances according to delay in payment Percentage of provision
Client’s balances which are regular in payment or with delay not %1

exceeding 30 days °

Delay on payment for more than 30 days till 90 days %10 from uncovered balance
Delay on payment for more than 90 days till 120 days %30 from uncovered balance
Delay on payment for more than 120 days till 180 days %350 from uncovered balance
Delay on payment for more than 180 days %100 from uncovered balance
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30-10 Legal reserve

30-11

30-12

30-13

The Company's statutes provide for deduction of a sum equal to 5% of the annual
net profit for formation of the legal reserve. Such deduction will be ceased when the
total reserve reaches an amount equal to half of the Company's issued capital and
when the reserve falls below this limit, it shall be necessary to resume.

Cash Flows Statement

The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. For the purpose
of preparing the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
hand, banks current accounts, demand deposits and credit banks which not exceed
three months, bank overdraft balance which paid off when requested is considered a
part of management of the company’s cash as one of its items that appear discounted
for the purpose of calculating cash and cash equivalent.

Dividend Distribution
Dividend distribution is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are declared.

Leasing contract

On 1 January 2018, the company began the adoption from the cancellation date of
law no. 95 and the issuance of law no.176 for the year 2018 the Egyptian Accounting
Standard number (49) leasing contracts and its validity date 1 January 2019. This
standard replaces the previous Egyptian Accounting Standard number (20).

EAS49 leases set outs the principles for the recognition, measurements, presentation
and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and the lessors
provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions.
This information provides the users of the financial statements a basis to evaluate the
effects of leasing contracts on the financial position, financial performance and the
cash flow of the entity.

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a
lease. A contract is or contain, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration and the
lease term is determined as a non-cancellable period for the lease contract together
with the following:-

Periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option.
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Periods covered by an option holder to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably
certain not to exercise the option.

Leases in which the company is the lessor
According to EAS 49 leases, the company determine at inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
To classify each lease, the company makes an overall assessment of whether the
lease transfers substantially the entire risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease, if not, then
it is an operating lease. In deciding whether a particular lease should be classified
as a finance or operating lease the substance of the transaction should be
considered, rather than its strict legal form. And from the examples of situations
that individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease being classified
as a finance lease:

a- The lease transfers ownership of the underlying assets to the lessee by the end
of the lease term.

b— The lessee has the option to purchase the underlying assets at a price expected
to be sufficiently lower than fair value at the exercise date that is reasonably
certain, at the inception date that the option will be exercised.

- The lease term is for a major part of the useful life of the underlying asset even
if title is not transferred.

d~ The present value of the lease payments at the inception date amounts to at
least substantially all of the fair value of the underlying asset.

e- The underlying asset is of such specialized nature that only the lessee can use
it without major modifications.

Recognition and measurement
Initial measurement
The amount due from the lessee under a finance lease to be recorded in the
statement of financial position of the lessor as a receivable at the amount of the net
investment in the lease.
At the commencement date the lease payments included in the measurement of the
net investment in the lease comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying assets during the lease term that are not received at the
commencement date:
a- Fixed payments (Include the fixed payments as determined in paragraph "B42"),
less any lease incentives.
b- Variable payments that depend on an index or rate, that initially measured using
an index or rate at the lease commencements date.
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c- Any guaranteed residual value, which is guaranteed by the lessee or by a third
party unrelated to the lessor who is financially capable of discharging the

obligation under the guarantee, Purchase option price if the lessee reasonably
certain to exercise this option.

d- Evaluated taking in account the considerations determined in paragraph "B37"
(penalties the lessee expects to pay for terminating the lease if the lease term

reflect the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease).
e- Termination of the lease.

30-14 Operating revenues
Policies applied from 1 January 2021
-The EAS No. (48) Supersedes the following Egyptian Accounting Standards:

- EAS No. (8) “Construction Contracts” as amended in 2015.
- EAS No. (11) “Revenue” as amended in 2015.

More specifically, EAS No. (48) Sets out that the recognition of the revenue is based
on the following five steps:

1- identify the contract with the customer;

2- identify the contractual obligation to transfer goods and/or services (known as
performance obligations);

3- determine the transaction price;

4- allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations identified based
on the stand-alone selling price of each good or service; and

5- Recognize revenue when the related performance obligation is met.

- The company applies the EAS No. (48) five-step revenue recognition model to
the recognition of fees and commissions income, under which income must be
recognized when services are transferred, hence the contractual performance
obligations to the customer has been satisfied.

- The company adopted EAS No. (48) With reference to the three business units
in which the Group operates at the date of adoption: Brokerage, Asset
Management and Investment Banking.

- Accordingly, after a contract with a customer has been identified in the first
step, the second step is to identify the performance obligation - or a series of
distinct performance obligations - provided to the customer. The Group
examines whether the service is capable of being distinct and is distinct within
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the context of the contract. A promised service is distinct if the customer can
benefit from the service either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer, and the promise to transfer the service to
the customer is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.

- The amount of income is measured based on the contractually agreed
transaction price for the performance obligation defined in the contract. If a
contract includes variable consideration, the company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised services to a customer. Income is recognized in profit and loss when
the identified performance obligation has been satisfied.

- Following the adoption of EAS No. (48), fee and commission income is
presented in the income statement separately from fee and commission expense.

- The company acts as the main source and Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48
requires that the costs of implementing contracts be presented separately in the
income statement within fees and commission expenditures.

- The company provides Asset Management services that give rise to asset
management and performance fees and constitute a single performance
obligation. The asset management and performance fee components are variable
considerations such that at each reporting date the Group estimates the fee
amount to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
services to the customer. The benefits arising from the asset management
services are simultaneously received and consumed by the customer over time.
The company recognizes revenue over time by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation, subject to the removal of
any uncertainty as to whether it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative amount of revenue recognized would occur or not. For the
management fee component this is the end of the service period. For
performance fees this date is when any uncertainty related to the performance
component has been fully removed.

- Management has assessed the impact of application of the new standard on the
company’s financial statements, analyzing each of its revenue streams by
applying the five-step model, and concluded there was no impact given the
nature of and the accounting policy adopted for the company’s revenues.
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-Policies applied before 1 January 2021
30-14-1 Revenue recognition

- Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable to the company.

- Revenue is recognized when the customer receive the service and the
invoice is issued, which results in transferring risks and benefits
associated with the service to the customer, and availability of enough
expectation of benefits flow and the possibility of identifying the
costs incurred by the company accurately. The company do not have
the right for continuous administrative interference of the service
provided, revenue can be measured accurately.

- Brokerage commission resulting from purchase of and sale of
securities operations in favor of clients are recorded when operation
is implemented, and the invoice is issued.

30-14-2 Funds and portfolios management fees

- Management fees are recognized according to contracts terms with
a certain percentage from net assets of mutual funds and portfolios,
which managed by the company every month these fees, are
recognized in companies’ operational income according to accrual
basis.

- Commission is calculated and suspended daily against mutual funds
and portfolios evaluation with a certain percentage from net assets of
mutual funds and portfolios.

| 30-14-3 Performance fees

- Performance fees are recognized with a certain percentage from annual
interest achieved of the mutual funds and portfolios in case it exceed a
certain rate specified according to contracts terms for each fund.

- Annual interest achieved is calculated according to the net assets of the
fund however, performance fees are not recognized from the revenue
except there are conditions for achievement and reasonable assurance
for collection.
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30-14-4

30-14-5

= 30-14-6

0

30-14-7

30-14-8

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in the income statement by using the
effective interest rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend income resulted from the Company's investments in shares

and mutual funds is recognized in the statement of income on the date

that the right to collect it is established.

Finance leasing income

At the commencement date, a manufacture or dealer lessor shall

recognize the following for each of its finance leases:

a- Revenue being the fair value of the underlying asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the lease payments accruing to the lessor, discounted
using a market rate of interest.

b- The cost of sale being the cost, or caring amount if different, of the
underlying asset less the present value of the unguaranteed residual
value.

c- Selling profit or loss (being the difference between revenue and the
cost of sale) in accordance with its policy for outrights sales to which
EAS "48" applies. A manufacturer or dealer lessor shall recognize
selling profit or loss on a finance lessee at the commencement date,
regardless of whether the lessor transfers the underlying asset as
described as EAS"48" (Revenue from contracts with customers).

Income from securitization operation

Income from securitization activities is measured by the amount of
increase in the fair value of the transfer weather it had been paid or still
accrual to the company as rights to be paid by the end of the
securitization process — against the book value of the securitization
portfolio at the date of the transfer contract.

Custody revenue

Custody revenue are recognized when the service is provided, and the
invoice is issued.
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30-14-13

Services revenue (Microfinance activity)

Services revenue are recognized according to the accrual basis when the
loan is offered according to the agreements in the contract between the
company and the borrower.

Delay penalty (Microfinance activity)

In case of a customer, delay in the payment of the due installment in the
due date and delay penalty is calculated according to the contract agree.
Other leasing revenue

Other leasing revenues are represented in the amount of the lessee
payment, directly after signing the contract in exchange with the
provided service according to the lease contract.

Mortgage finance revenue

Revenue recognized from the use of third parties to the company's

resources, which generates revenues if the following conditions are met:

-The flow of economic benefits associated with the transaction to the
entity is highly expected.

-Revenue can be measured reliably.

-Thus, revenue from financing services is recognized in the areas of
financing the purchase, construction, renovation and improvement of
real estate in accordance with the contract between the Company and
its customers on a time proportion basis taking into account the target
interest rate on the asset.

-Loans receivable from customers' portfolios purchased using the
effective interest method are recognized on a time proportion basis
taking into account the discount rate used at the time of purchase.

-Revenue from delays in payment is recognized when collected from
customers.

Perennials products and Services Revenue

Revenue recognized from the sales of Perennials products in the income
statements when the risks and substantial benefits transferred to the
buyer. Revenue of services provided recognized in the income
statements when the services rendered, no revenue will be recognized in
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case of assurance of uncollectability of the return or the cost associated
to or continuing administrative relation with the sold products.

The sales represents the value of the contractual sold perennials products
which delivered to the customers in its cash sales prices , the difference
between the cash price and the total sales as a deferred credit interest
which presented netted from the accounts receivables , this interest
recognized as revenue in the income statement according to the effective
interest rate till maturity, same bases used to record revenue from other
services which represented in the general commerce , distribution,
commercial agencies, invoices collection of behalf of others, and late
penalties on customers, administrative expenses and revenue from
accelerating payments

30-14-14 Customers finance interest Revenue
Revenuer recognized from customers finance according to the contract
between the company and its customers based on the time value taking
into consideration the rate of return used on the same asset. The revenue
recognized in the income statements under revenue from interest
according to the effective interest rate till maturity.
The effective interest rate is the financial asset amortized cost and
allocation of the revenuer over the lifetime of the asset. Actual rate of
return is the rate used for deduction of projected cashflows expected to
collect over the life of the financial asset to reach book value for the
financial asset.
The revenue is not recognized from the loans to customer categorizing
the as doubtful, those booked as marginal records outside the financial
statements. The recognition of such interest upon the cash collection.

30-15 Expenses
30-15-1 Rent
Rental expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the contract duration.
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30-15-2 Interest expense
Interest expense on loans is recognized in profit or loss using the

30-15-3

effective interest method.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination in the same period or in different period, out of profit and
losses either to be recognized directly in equity or in OCI or in business
combination.

First: Current Income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.

Second: Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:
o Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.
* Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not:
a- Business combination.
b- Does not affect either on the total net accounting income,
or on the total net taxable income (Tax loss).
® Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the
company can control the timing of the reversal of the
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temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

- Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which they can be used.

- Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans
for individual subsidiaries in the company. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can

be used.

- Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.

- When the deferred tax is measured in the end of the financial
period, the tax effects on the procedures followed by the
company to payback the book value for its assets and

liabilities.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain

criteria are met.

30-15-4 Borrowing Cost

- Borrowing cost is recognized through statement of income, which
incurred as a financing expense during the period with exception
of, that borrowing cost that directly related to the acquisition or
creation of assets is capitalized and added to the value of these
assets and amortized over the useful life of these assets.

- Borrowing cost is considered as part of the fixed asset costs related
to it when the actual spending on the asset start during the period
in which the company bears the borrowing cost. Capitalizing of
borrowing costs is stopped during the periods in which the asset
processing is temporary stopped or when the asset is ready for use.
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30-16 Lease contracts in which the company as a lessor

policies applied from 1 January 2021

The right to use asset and lease contract liability is recognized on the initial
date of the lease contract, although the company has the right not to imply
that neither for short-term lease contracts nor lease contracts in which the
asset has low value, in this case lease payments regarding these leases are
recognized expense, either with fixed installment over the life of the lease, or
another regular basis, and the another regular basis is recognized if that basis
is more representative of the benefit as lessee.

The company has long-term lease contracts for some exhibitions and
workshops, it is measured and presented in financial statements as follows;
Initial measurement of the asset “the right to use”

30-16-1

30-16-2

The cost of the right to use asset consists of;

A.

The initial measurement of lease contract liability, which is the current
value of the unpaid lease payments on that date. Lease payments are
deducted using the interest rate in the lease contract, in case that was
not possible, the lessee must use interest rate of additional borrowing
for the lessee.

Any lease contract payments have been made during or before the date
the lease contract began without any lease incentives collected.

Any initial direct costs that was carried by the lessee.

Estimates of the costs carried by the lessee in dismantle and remove
asset of the contract, restoring the site the asset existed in, to its original
condition, or restoring the asset itself to its required condition, unless
those costs are to be incurred to produce the stock, and the lessee will
record these costs either on the date of the lease contract or as result of
using this asset for period of time.

Subsequent measurement of the asset “the right to use”
After the start date of the lease, the “right of use” is measured, and the cost
model is applied where the right of use asset is measured at cost:

A.

B.

Minus any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Modified by any remeasurement of the lease obligation.
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30-16-3 Initial measurement of lease contract obligation

30-16-4

On the date of the start of the lease, the commitment of the lease is measured
at the present value of the unpaid rent payments on that date. Lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be
easily determined. If that rate cannot be easily determined, the lessee must
use the company's additional borrowing rate as a lessee.
Subsequent measurement of lease contract obligation
After the lease contract initial date, the following is to be done:
A. Increase the carrying amount of the obligation to reflect interest on the
commitment to lease.
B. Reducing the carrying amount of the liability to reflect rental payments.
C. To reassess the carrying amount of the obligation to reflect any
revaluation or adjustments to the lease or to reflect the fixed lease
payments in its modified essence.
The right of use asset and rental contract obligations are presented in the
statement of financial position separately from other assets and liabilities.
Lease contracts include the lessee is responsible for the maintenance and
insurance of the leased asset, and the lease does not include any
arrangements for the transfer of ownership at the end of the lease period.
For a contract that includes a rental component with one or more rental or
non-rental components (if any), compensation is allocated in the contract to
each rental component based on the independent, proportional price of the
rental component and the total independent price of the non-rental
components. As a practical means, and within the scope permitted by the
standard, the company, as a lessee, can choose, according to the category of
the underlying asset in the contract, not to separate the non-rental
components from the rental components, and then account for each rental
component and any accompanying non-rental components as one rental
component,
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Policies applied before 1 January 2021

Lease

The payments are measured in the statement of profit and loss based on the fixed
payments over the lease contract period.

30-17 Earnings per share
The Company present s basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the income statement attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period/year.

30-18 Profit sharing to employees

- The company pays 10% of its cash dividends as profit sharing to its employees
provided that it will not exceed total employees’ annual salaries. Profit sharing
is recognized as a dividend distribution through equity and as a liability when
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

- The distribution of a share of profits to employees is linked to the distribution
of dividends to shareholders, the share of employees in undistributed profits is
not recognized as liability, and however profit share of employees is estimated
in the periods, which the distribution was not announced to distribute dividends
to the shareholders for the purpose of earnings per share calculation.

30-19 Investment in property
Investment in property represents the property held to generate revenue, increase
its value, or both. It is recognized at cost first, then it is recognized at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment cost. The depreciation and
impairment cost is recognized as gains or losses
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate the cost over the
useful life of each item; however, land is not subject to depreciation.
The depreciation useful life represents as follows:
Investment in property No. of years
Buildings 50
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The gains and losses on disposal of an investment in property (it is calculated
as the difference between the proceeds from disposal and the book value), it is
recognized under gains or losses.

31- Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company is subject for the following risks as a result of using financial instruments:
e Market Risks

This Disclosure presents information about to how extend the company is subject to the
mentioned risks, the company’s goals, policies and operations and regarding the
measurement and management of such risks and the company’s capital management as
well.

The company’s Board of Director is responsible for setting the framework for the risk
management process and its monitoring. The company’s top management is the
responsible for the setting and monitoring the risk management policies and report on a
regular base to the mother company the risk management activities.

The existing framework for the financial risk management represented in a combination
of formal and unformal risk management policies in various fields.

The internal audit committee monitor the compliance of the company’s top
management with policies and procedures adopted for the financial risk management
process and the adequacy of the current policies and procedures to cover the risk of
financial liability.

31-1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a person or an organization defaulting in the repayment of
their obligations to the Group in respect of the terms and conditions of the credit
facilities granted to them by the Group.
The company mainly faces credit risks from client’s receivable, notes receivable,
sundry debtors, other assets, due from related parties and its financing activities
including deposits in banks and financial institutions.

First: Clients balances
The credit risk arises based on the company’s policies, procedures
and control structure related to risk management. The credit
worthiness of the client is measured based on the credit performance
card for each client separately and the credit limit is determined based
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on this evaluation a client’s accounts to be always monitored.
Provisions study are to be made at the financial position date.

Second: Other financial assets and cash deposits

For credit risks arises from other financial assets of the company,
which includes cash in banks and cash on hand the company is
exposed to the risk of credit as a result of the other side default for
payment with a maximum limit of the book value of these assets.

The finance department in the company is the responsible for
managing the raised credit risk from cash in banks and financial
institutions. The company decreases the credit risk through
depositing its cash in good reputation banks. The management does
not expect according to the information available about the bank
they deal with, that any of its debtors may default in repaying them.

31-2 Liquidity Risk

The company applies a policy which aims at maintaining adequate balances of liquid
assets to be able to pay its short-term liabilities when due, in accordance with normal
and exceptional circumstances without incurring unacceptable losses or risking to the
Company's reputation.

The Company limits liquidity risk by ensuring availability of banking facilities.

The company maintain adequate cash to repay its expected operating expenses
including expenses and liabilities.

31-3 Market risk

Market risk is represented in the factors, which affect values, earnings, and profits of

all securities negotiated in stock exchange or affect the value, eaming, and profit of a

particular security.

According to the company's investment policy, the following procedures are

undertaken to reduce the effect of this risk.

- Performing the necessary studies before investment decision in order to verify that
investment is made in potential securities.

- Diversification of investments in different sectors and industries.

- Performing continuous studies required to follow up the company's investments
and their development.
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31-3-1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of earnings to future movements in
interest rates applied on assets and liabilities.

The Group’s management closely monitors interest rate fluctuations on a
continuous basis and ensures that assets and liabilities are matched and re-
priced in a timely manner. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as a result
of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or are
re-priced in a given period. The most important source of interest rate risk
derives from the lending, funding, and investing activities, where fluctuations
in interest rates are reflected in interest margins and earnings.

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Fixed return balances
Financial assets 417 957 365 600 617 453
Variable return balances
Financial assets 10 938 487 482 10 046 754 142
Financial liabilities 9415706 774 8399 648 474

31-3-2 Foreign currency risk

- The company faces the foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and
loans which is not recorded with the company’s functional currency
which is mainly the Egyptian Pound, and so the evaluation of assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies.

- For assets and cash liabilities which is occurred in foreign currencies,
the company’s policies is to assure that the net risk remains in an
acceptable level of purchasing and selling of foreign currencies.

- The company monitors the exchange prices to control these risks.

- The following table summarize the extent to which the risk of foreign
currencies price fluctuations in the end of the financial period:
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32- Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities is set up in accordance

with these levels:

¢ First level: The pronounced prices of fair value of financial instruments in active
markets.

e Second level: The pronounced prices of fair value of financial instruments in
active market or the pronounced prices from the fund’s manager in which the
company is investing or any other evaluation methods in which all the material
important inputs are supported with market information either in a direct or in an
indirect way.

o Third level: Other evaluating methods, which is not relayed on any factors with
material important inputs to comparable market information.
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& 33- Significant events.

Most countries of the world, including Egypt, were exposed during the first quarter of 2020

to a state of slowdown and economic contraction as a result of the outbreak of the new

epidemic of Corona (Covid-19), and the governments of the world, including the Egyptian

government, made packages of precautionary measures to prevent the spread of the epidemic.

These measures have led to a state of economic slowdown at the global and local levels,

which has shown its impact on all activities in various forms, so some precautionary measures

. have been taken:

- First: Procedures from Central bank of Egypt and Financial regulatory authority

1) The financial regulatory authority has taken an exception procedure to remove

the burden from all the clients dealing with companies under its authority by
postponing all accrued installment (for institutions and individuals) for six
months without any delay penalties.

2) The central bank Egypt on March 16, 2020 has postponed all the accrued

| installments without any extra interest or delay penalties for six months.

Second: Procedures from the company

i

1) The company has reduced the working hours in premises and allow for
employees (who can) to work from home, reducing the availability of the
employees by 50% with providing all the required medical supplies.

2) The company postponed all loans installments and interest with the lending
balances for a period of six months without incurring any returns and fines
additional to late payment according to the central bank decision issued on
March 18, 2020.

3) The company postpone most of the accrued installment for its clients for six
months from the date of the Financial regulatory authority decree issued at March
16, 2020.

4) Reefy for micro finance has reduced the rate imposed on clients, cancelling the
administration fees with an approval to potstone March installment or march
and April upon client and on the issued loans the grace period is to be extended
for one month after issuing.

-The company assures that the value of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements have been identified upon the best estimate from the latest data
available for it.
The company assures that the value of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements have been identified based on the best estimate from the latest data
available for it.
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